TRANSALTA CORP Form F-10/A December 17, 2014

QuickLinks -- Click here to rapidly navigate through this document

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 17, 2014

Registration No. 333-200773

United States SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO FORM F-10

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

TransAlta Corporation

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Not Applicable

(Translation of Registrant's name into English (if applicable))

Canada

(Province or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

4911

(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number (if applicable))

Not Applicable

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number (if applicable))

P.O. Box 1900, Station "M", 110-12th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 2M1, (403) 267-7110 (Address and telephone number of Registrant's principal executive offices)

> TransAlta Centralia Generation LLC 913 Big Hanaford Road, Centralia, Washington 98531-9101, (360) 330 8128

(Name, address (including zip code) and telephone number (including area code) of agent for service in the United States)

Copies to:

Maryse C. St.-Laurent TransAlta Corporation P.O. Box 1900, Station "M" 110-12th Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta Canada T2P 2M1 (403) 267-7110 Mark G. Eade Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP Suite 3700, 400 3rd Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta Canada T2P 4H2 (403) 267-8222 Andrew J. Foley Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP 1285 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10019-6964 (212) 373-3078

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale of the securities to the public: From time to time after the effective date of this Registration Statement.

Province of Alberta, Canada

(Principal jurisdiction regulating this offering (if applicable))

It is proposed that this filing shall become effective (check appropriate box)

| A. | 0 | upon the filing with the Commission, pursuant to Rule 467(a) (if in connection with an offering being made |
|----|----|---|
| | | contemporaneously in the United States and Canada). |
| В. | ý | at some future date (check the appropriate box below) |
| | 1. | o pursuant to Rule 467(b) on (<i>date</i>) at (<i>time</i>) (designate a time not sooner than 7 calendar days after filing). |
| | 2. | o pursuant to Rule 467(b) on (<i>date</i>) at (<i>time</i>) (designate a time 7 calendar days or sooner after filing) because the |
| | | securities regulatory authority in the review jurisdiction has issued a receipt or notification of clearance on (date). |

| 3. | ý | pursuant to Rule 467(b) as soon as practicable after notification of the Commission by the Registrant or the |
|----|---|---|
| | | Canadian securities regulatory authority of the review jurisdiction that a receipt or notification of clearance has |
| | | been issued with respect hereto. |

o after the filing of the next amendment to this Form (if preliminary material is being filed).

4.

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to the home jurisdiction's shelf prospectus offering procedures, check the following box. \hat{y}

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registration statement shall become effective as provided in Rule 467 under the Securities Act or on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Securities Act, may determine.

PART I INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE DELIVERED TO OFFEREES OR PURCHASERS

SHORT FORM BASE SHELF PROSPECTUS

<u>New Issue</u>

December 17, 2014

TRANSALTA CORPORATION US\$2,000,000,000

Common Shares First Preferred Shares Warrants Subscription Receipts Debt Securities

We may from time to time offer and issue (i) common shares ("**Common Shares**"), (ii) first preferred shares ("**First Preferred Shares**"), (iii) warrants to purchase Common Shares, First Preferred Shares or other securities ("**Warrants**"), (iv) subscription receipts, each of which, once purchased, entitle the holder to receive upon satisfaction of certain release conditions, and for no additional consideration, one Common Share ("**Subscription Receipts**"), or (v) debt securities ("**debt securities**"), (the Common Shares, First Preferred Shares, Warrants, Subscription Receipts and debt securities are collectively referred to herein as the "**Securities**") up to an aggregate initial offering price of US\$2,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency or currency unit used to denominate the Securities) during the 25 month period that this short form base shelf prospectus (the "**Prospectus**"), including any amendments hereto, remains valid.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE "SEC") OR ANY UNITED STATES STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE SEC OR ANY UNITED STATES STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

We are permitted, under the multijurisdictional disclosure system adopted in the United States, to prepare this Prospectus in accordance with Canadian disclosure requirements. Prospective investors should be aware that such requirements are different from those of the United States. The financial statements incorporated herein by reference have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS") and are subject to Canadian auditing and auditor independence standards. As a result, such financial statements may not be comparable to financial statements of United States companies. See "About this Prospectus".

Prospective investors should be aware that the acquisition of the Securities may have tax consequences both in the United States and Canada. Such tax consequences for investors who are resident in, or citizens of, the United States may not be described fully herein or in any applicable Prospectus Supplement (as defined herein). You should read the tax discussion under "*Certain Income Tax Considerations*" and, if applicable, in any relevant Prospectus Supplement.

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under United States federal securities laws may be affected adversely by the fact that the Corporation is incorporated and organized under the laws of Canada, that most of TransAlta's officers and directors are residents of Canada, that some or all of the underwriters or experts named in this Prospectus are residents of Canada, and that all or a substantial portion of the assets of the Corporation and said persons are located outside the United States.

No underwriter has been involved in the preparation of this Prospectus or performed any review of the contents of this Prospectus.

The earnings coverage ratios on long term debt and preferred shares for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2013 and the twelve month period ended September 30, 2014 are less than one-to-one. See "*Earnings Coverage Ratios*".

The specific terms of any offering of Securities will be set forth in a prospectus supplement or supplements (each, a "**Prospectus Supplement**") including, where applicable: (i) in the case of Common Shares, the number of Common Shares offered and the offering price; (ii) in the case of

First Preferred Shares, the designation of the particular series, the number of First Preferred Shares offered, the offering price, any voting rights, any rights to receive dividends, any terms of redemption, any conversion or exchange rights and any other specific terms of the First Preferred Shares; (iii) in the case of Warrants, the designation, number and terms of the Common Shares, First Preferred Shares or other securities purchasable upon exercise of the Warrants, and any procedures that will result in the adjustment of those numbers, the exercise price, the dates and periods of exercise, the currency or currency unit in which the Warrants are issued and any other specific terms of the Warrants; (iv) in the case of the Subscription Receipts, the number of Subscription Receipts offered, the offering price, the terms, conditions and procedures for the conversion of such Subscription Receipts into Common Shares and any other specific terms of the debt securities, the currency or currency unit, the maturity, the offering price, whether payment on the debt securities will be senior or subordinated to our other liabilities and obligations, whether the debt securities will bear interest, the interest rate or method of determining the interest rate, any interest rate,

(continued on next page)

any terms of redemption, any conversion or exchange rights and any other specific terms of the debt securities. We reserve the right to include in a Prospectus Supplement specific terms pertaining to the Securities that are not within the options and parameters set forth in this Prospectus. You should read this Prospectus and any applicable Prospectus Supplement before you invest in any Securities.

All shelf information permitted under applicable laws to be omitted from this Prospectus will be contained or incorporated by reference in one or more Prospectus Supplements that will be delivered to purchasers together with this Prospectus. Each Prospectus Supplement will be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus for the purposes of securities legislation as of the date of the applicable Prospectus Supplement and only for the purposes of the distribution of the Securities to which the applicable Prospectus Supplement pertains.

Our Common Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange ("**TSX**") under the symbol "TA" and on the New York Stock Exchange ("**NYSE**") under the symbol "TAC". Our cumulative redeemable rate reset first preferred shares, Series A ("**Series A Shares**"), our cumulative redeemable rate reset first preferred shares, Series E ("**Series E Shares**") and our cumulative redeemable rate reset first preferred shares, Series E ("**Series E Shares**") and our cumulative redeemable rate reset first preferred shares, Series G ("**Series G Shares**") are listed and traded on the TSX under the symbols "TA.PR.D", "TA.PR.F", "TA.PR.H" and "TA.PR.J", respectively. On December 16, 2014, the closing price of our Common Shares, our Series A Shares, our Series C Shares, our Series E Shares and our Series G Shares on the TSX was \$9.93, \$14.40, \$18.11, \$20.00 and \$20.30, respectively and on the NYSE the closing price of our Common Shares was US\$8.55. **There is currently no market through which additional series of First Preferred Shares, Warrants, Subscription Receipts or debt securities may be sold and purchasers may not be able to resell such Securities purchased under this Prospectus. This may affect the pricing of such Securities in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the Securities, and the extent of issuer regulation. Investing in the Securities involves risks. See "***Risk Factors***" in this Prospectus and in any applicable Prospectus Supplement.**

We may sell the Securities to or through underwriters or dealers purchasing as principals, directly to one or more purchasers pursuant to applicable statutory exemptions or through agents. See "*Plan of Distribution*". The Prospectus Supplement relating to a particular offering of Securities will identify each underwriter, dealer or agent engaged in connection with the offering and sale of the Securities, and will set forth the terms of the offering of such Securities, including the method of distribution, the proceeds to us and any fees, discounts or any other compensation payable to underwriters, dealers or agents and any other material terms of an offering of such Securities.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, each series or issue of Securities (other than Common Shares) will be a new issue of Securities with no established trading market. The Securities may be sold from time to time in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices or at non-fixed prices. If offered on a non-fixed price basis the Securities may be offered at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at prices to be negotiated with purchasers, in which case the compensation payable to an underwriter, dealer or agent in connection with any such sale will be the amount, if any, by which the aggregate price paid for the Securities by the purchasers exceeds the gross proceeds paid by the underwriter, dealer or agent to us and the price at which the Securities will be offered and sold may vary as between purchasers during the distribution period.

In connection with any offering of Securities, the underwriters may over allot or effect transactions which stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the Securities at a level above that which otherwise might prevail on the open market. Such transactions may be commenced, interrupted or discontinued at any time. See "*Plan of Distribution*".

Messrs. Faithfull, Fohrer, Giffin and Mansour and Ms. Nelson are directors of the Corporation who reside outside of Canada and each of these directors has appointed the following agent for service of process:

| Name of Person | Name and Address of Agent |
|----------------------|---|
| Timothy W. Faithfull | TransAlta Corporation |
| | 110 - 12th Avenue SW, Calgary, AB T2R 0G7 |
| Alan J. Fohrer | TransAlta Corporation |
| | 110 - 12th Avenue SW, Calgary, AB T2R 0G7 |
| Gordon D. Giffin | TransAlta Corporation |
| | 110 - 12th Avenue SW, Calgary, AB T2R 0G7 |
| Yakout Mansour | TransAlta Corporation |
| | 110 - 12th Avenue SW, Calgary, AB T2R 0G7 |
| Georgia R. Nelson | TransAlta Corporation |
| | 110 - 12th Avenue SW, Calgary, AB T2R 0G7 |

Purchasers are advised that it may not be possible for investors to enforce judgments obtained in Canada against any person who resides outside of Canada, even if the party has appointed an agent for service of process.

Our head and registered office is located at 110 - 12th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, T2R 0G7.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS | 1 |
|---|----|
| DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE | 2 |
| CERTAIN AVAILABLE INFORMATION | 4 |
| SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS | 4 |
| TRANSALTA CORPORATION | 6 |
| USE OF PROCEEDS | 6 |
| EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIOS | 7 |
| DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL | 8 |
| DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS | 10 |
| DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPTS | 11 |
| DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES | 12 |
| PRIOR SALES | 26 |
| MARKET FOR COMMON SHARES | 27 |
| CERTAIN INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS | 29 |
| PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION | 30 |
| RISK FACTORS | 30 |
| LEGAL MATTERS | 31 |
| EXPERTS | 31 |
| INTEREST OF EXPERTS | 31 |
| AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR | 31 |
| DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT | 31 |
| ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES | 31 |
| | |

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

In this Prospectus, in any Prospectus Supplement and in documents incorporated by reference in this Prospectus, unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars. "U.S. dollars" or "US\$" means lawful currency of the United States. Unless otherwise indicated, all financial information included and incorporated by reference in this Prospectus has been determined using IFRS. Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this Prospectus and any Prospectus Supplement to "TransAlta", the "Corporation", "we", "us" and "our" mean TransAlta Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries including any consolidated partnerships of which the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries are partners.

We may, from time to time, sell any combination of the Securities described in this Prospectus in one or more offerings up to an aggregate principal amount of US\$2,000,000,000. This Prospectus provides a general description of the Securities that we may offer. Each time we offer and sell Securities under this Prospectus, we will provide you with a Prospectus Supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. The Prospectus Supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this Prospectus. Before investing in any Securities, you should read both this Prospectus and any applicable Prospectus Supplement together with additional information described below under "Documents Incorporated by Reference" and "Certain Available Information".

All information permitted under applicable laws to be omitted from this Prospectus will be contained in one or more Prospectus Supplements that will be made available together with this Prospectus.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any applicable Prospectus Supplement and on the other information included in the registration statement on Form F-10 of which this Prospectus forms a part. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information. We are not making an offer to sell these Securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted by law. You should not assume that the information in this Prospectus, any applicable Prospectus Supplement or any documents incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of those documents as our business, operating results, financial condition and prospects may have changed since that date.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents of TransAlta, filed with the securities commissions or similar authorities in each of the provinces of Canada and with the SEC, are specifically incorporated by reference in, and form an integral part of, this Prospectus, provided that such documents are not incorporated by reference to the extent that their contents are modified or superseded by a statement contained in this Prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document that is also incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Prospectus:

| comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 2013, the notes thereto, the auditors' report thereon and the auditors' report on our internal control over | r financial reporting; |
|--|------------------------|
| (b) management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations as at and for the December 31, 2013 ("Annual MD&A"); | year ended |
| (c) annual information form dated February 20, 2014 (the " Annual Information Form ") for the year ender December 31, 2013; | led |
| (d) management proxy circular dated March 10, 2014 prepared in connection with TransAlta's annual and shareholders held on April 29, 2014; | special meeting of |
| (e) consolidated comparative interim unaudited financial statements as at and for the three- and nine-mont September 30, 2014 and 2013 and the notes thereto; | th periods ended |
| (f) management's interim discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations as at and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014; and | d for the three- and |
| (g) the material change report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by the Corporation of its 50 per Generation, Blackrock development and Wailuku to TransAlta's partner MidAmerican Renewables for and the resizing of the Corporation's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share. | |

Any documents of the type required to be incorporated by reference in a short form prospectus pursuant to National Instrument 44-101 Short Form Prospectus Distributions ("NI 44-101") of the Canadian Securities Administrators, including any documents of the type referred to above, material change reports (excluding confidential material change reports) and business acquisition reports we subsequently file with any securities commissions or similar authorities in Canada after the date of this Prospectus and prior to the termination of any offering of Securities shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus. These documents are available through the internet on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("SEDAR"), which can be accessed at www.sedar.com. In addition, any similar documents we file with the SEC, including our current reports on Form 6-K or annual reports on Form 40-F and any other documents filed with or furnished to the SEC, pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c)

or 15(a) of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "**U.S. Exchange Act**"), in each case after the date of this Prospectus, shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus and the registration statement of which this Prospectus forms a part, if and to the extent expressly provided in such filings. Our U.S. filings are electronically available from the SEC's Electronic Document Gathering and Retrieval System, which is commonly known by the acronym EDGAR and may be accessed at www.sec.gov.

Any statement contained in this Prospectus or in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this Prospectus to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document that also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement is not to be deemed an admission for any purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Prospectus.

Any "template version" of "marketing materials" (as those terms are defined under applicable Canadian securities laws) that are utilized in connection with a distribution of Securities will be filed on SEDAR. In the event that such marketing materials are filed after the date of the applicable prospectus supplement for the offering and before termination of the distribution of such Securities, such filed versions of the marketing materials will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into the applicable prospectus supplement for the purposes of the distribution of the Securities to which the prospectus supplement pertains.

Upon a new annual information form and related annual audited comparative consolidated financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis being filed by TransAlta with, and where required, accepted by, the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the term of this Prospectus, the previous annual information form, the previous annual audited financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis, all interim financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis, all material change reports and all business acquisition reports we file prior to the commencement of the financial year in which our new annual information form and related annual audited comparative consolidated financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis are filed, shall be deemed no longer to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus for purposes of future offers and sales of Securities hereunder. Upon interim financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis being filed by TransAlta with the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the term of this Prospectus, all interim financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis being filed by TransAlta with the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the term of this Prospectus, all interim financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis being filed by TransAlta with the applicable securities regulatory authorities during the term of this Prospectus, all interim financial statements and accompanying management's discussion and analysis filed prior to the new interim consolidated financial statements shall be deemed no longer to be incorporated into this Prospectus for purposes of future offers and sales of Securities hereunder.

Updated earnings coverage ratios will be filed quarterly with the applicable securities regulatory authorities either as Prospectus Supplements or as exhibits to our interim unaudited comparative consolidated financial statements and annual audited comparative consolidated financial statements and will be deemed to be incorporated by reference in this Prospectus for the purposes of the offering of the Securities.

A Prospectus Supplement containing the specific terms of any Securities offered thereunder will be delivered to purchasers of such Securities together with this Prospectus and will be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Prospectus as of the date of such Prospectus Supplement solely for the purposes of the distribution of the Securities covered by such Prospectus Supplement.

Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference (other than exhibits to such documents, unless such exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference in such documents) may be obtained on request without charge from the Vice-President Legal and Corporate Secretary of TransAlta at P.O. Box 1900, Station "M", 110 - 12th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2P 2M1, Telephone (403) 267-7110.

Prospective investors should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any applicable Prospectus Supplement and on the other information included or incorporated by reference in the registration statement of which this Prospectus forms a part. We have not authorized anyone to provide prospective investors with different or additional information. We are not making an offer of these Securities in any jurisdiction where the offer is not permitted by law. Prospective investors should not assume that the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any applicable Prospectus Supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of the applicable Prospectus Supplement.

CERTAIN AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC under the *United States Securities Act of 1933*, as amended (the "**U.S. Securities Act**"), a registration statement on Form F-10 relating to the Securities and of which this Prospectus forms a part. This Prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in such registration statement, certain items of which are incorporated by reference in or contained in the exhibits to such registration statement as permitted or required by the rules and regulations of the SEC. See "*Documents Filed as Part of the Registration Statement*". Statements made in this Prospectus as to the contents of any contract, agreement or other document referred to are only summaries, and in each instance, reference is made to the exhibit, if applicable, for a more complete description of the relevant matter, each such statement being qualified in its entirety by such reference. Items of information omitted from this Prospectus but contained in the registration statement on Form F-10 may be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained at the offices of the SEC described below.

We are subject to the information requirements of the U.S. Exchange Act, and in accordance therewith, file reports and other information with the SEC. Under the multijurisdictional disclosure system adopted in the United States and Canada, such reports and other information may be prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Canada, which requirements are different from those of the United States. We are exempt from the rules under the U.S. Exchange Act prescribing the furnishing and content of proxy statements, and its officers, directors and principal shareholders are exempt from the reporting and short swing profit recovery provisions contained in Section 16 of the U.S. Exchange Act. Under the U.S. Exchange Act, we are not required to publish financial statements as promptly as United States companies. Such reports and other information may be inspected without charge, and copied upon payment of prescribed fees, at the public reference room maintained by the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 and are also are available on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus, including the documents incorporated by reference herein, contains both historical and forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are based on TransAlta's beliefs as well as assumptions based on information available at the time the assumption was made and on management's experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected further developments as well as other factors deemed appropriate in the circumstances. Forward-looking statements are not facts, but only predictions and generally can be identified by the use of statements that include phrases such as "may", "will", "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," "foresee", "potential", "enable", "continue" or other comparable terminology. These statements are not guarantees of TransAlta's future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other important factors that could cause TransAlta's actual performance to be materially different from those projected.



With respect to forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus, we have made assumptions regarding, among other things: our business and anticipated future financial performance; expectations related to future earnings and cash flow from operating and contracting activities; estimates of fuel supply and demand conditions and the costs of procuring fuel; expectations for demand of electricity in both the short and long term; the estimated contribution of Energy Trading activities to gross margin and expectations relating to the performance of TransAlta Renewables Inc.'s assets; our success in executing on our growth projects; the timing, completion and commissioning of projects under development; our ability to complete current construction projects according to planned specifications, including major projects such as the South Hedland Power Project; our current construction projects when complete will operate as expected; our ability to maintain our existing operations; considering the age of certain of our assets, anticipated capital spend and maintenance costs; expectations regarding the Alberta Electric System Operator's plans for resolving regional constraints on Alberta's transmission system; the role that different energy sources are expected to play in meeting future energy needs; expected governmental regulatory regimes and legislation and their anticipated impact on us and the timing of the implementation of such regimes and regulations, as well as the cost of compliance; our expectations regarding proceedings before the Alberta Utilities Commission as well as those relating to the outcome of existing or potential legal and contractual claims, regulatory investigations and disputes; our ability to obtain financing on acceptable terms; that terms of future offerings will be on the terms and conditions consistent with the current industry standards; and our expectations in respect of the global economic environment and growing scrutiny by investors relating to sustainability performance.

Factors that may adversely impact TransAlta's forward-looking statements include risks relating to: fluctuations in market prices and availability of fuel supplies required to generate electricity; TransAlta's ability to contract its generation for prices that will provide expected returns; operational risks involving our facilities, including unplanned outages at such facilities; as our plants are exposed to operations risks relating to fatigue cracks in our boilers, corrosion in boiler tubing and turbine failures and other issues that lead to outages and increased volume risk; the regulatory and political environments in the jurisdictions in which TransAlta operates; environmental requirements and changes in, or liabilities under, these requirements; changes in general economic conditions including interest rates; execution and capital cost risks relating to TransAlta's development and construction projects; disruptions in the transmission and distribution of electricity; effects of weather; disruptions in the source of fuels, water or wind required to operate our facilities; natural or man-made disasters; the threat of domestic terrorism and cyber-attacks; equipment failure and our ability to carry out the repairs in a cost-effective manner or timely manner; energy trading risks; industry risk and competition; fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies and foreign political risks; the need for additional financing; structural subordination of securities; counterparty credit risk; insurance coverage; TransAlta's provision for income taxes; legal, regulatory and contractual proceedings involving TransAlta; reliance on key personnel; labour relations matters and our expectations regarding the renewal of collective bargaining agreements; development projects and acquisitions; and absence of a public market for certain of the Securities offered under this Prospectus. The foregoing risk factors, among others, are described in further detail under the heading "*Risk Factors*" in this

Potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included in this document are made only as of the date of this Prospectus and TransAlta does not undertake to publicly update these forward-looking statements to reflect new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by applicable laws. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events might or might not occur. TransAlta cannot assure you that projected results or events will be achieved. The foregoing risk factors, among others, are described in further detail under the heading "*Risk Factors*" in this Prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference into this Prospectus, including the Annual MD&A and the Annual Information Form.

TRANSALTA CORPORATION

TransAlta is a corporation amalgamated under the *Canada Business Corporations Act*. Our registered office and principal place of business are located at 110 - 12th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, Canada, T2R 0G7. For further information on the intercorporate relationships among TransAlta and its subsidiaries, please see "*Corporate Structure*" in the Annual Information Form.

TransAlta and its predecessors have been engaged in the production and sale of electric energy since 1909. We are among Canada's largest non-regulated electric generation and energy marketing companies with an aggregate net ownership interest of approximately 8,437 megawatts ("**MW**") of generating capacity operating in facilities having approximately 10,243 MW of aggregate generating capacity⁽¹⁾. In addition, we have a facility under construction with a net and aggregate ownership interest of 150 MW of generating capacity. TransAlta is focused on generating electricity in Canada, the United States and Western Australia through its diversified portfolio of facilities fuelled by coal, natural gas, diesel, hydro, wind and geothermal resources.

In Canada, we hold a net ownership interest of approximately 6,322 MW of electrical generating capacity in thermal, natural gas-fired, wind-powered and hydroelectric facilities, including 5,166 MW in Western Canada, 922 MW in Ontario, 147 MW in Québec and 88 MW in New Brunswick.

In the United States, our principal facilities include a 1,340 MW thermal facility and a 248 MW natural gas-fired facility⁽²⁾, both located in Centralia, Washington, which supply electricity to the Pacific Northwest. In addition, we have 1 MW of electrical generating capacity through a hydroelectric facility located in Washington and a 101 MW net interest in a wind farm located in Wyoming. The economic interest in the Wyoming wind farm was transferred to TransAlta Renewables and we maintain a 70.3% direct and indirect ownership interest.

In Australia, we have 425 MW of net electrical generating capacity from natural gas and diesel-fired generation facilities that are located at customer mine sites.

We regularly review our operations in order to optimize our generating assets and evaluate appropriate growth opportunities. We have in the past and may in the future make changes and additions to our fleet of coal, natural gas, hydro and wind fuelled facilities.

TransAlta is organized into three business segments, Generation, Energy Trading and Corporate. The Generation group is responsible for constructing, operating and maintaining our electricity generation facilities. The Energy Trading group is responsible for the wholesale trading of electricity and other energy-related commodities and derivatives. It is also responsible for the management of available generating capacity as well as the fuel and transmission needs of the Generation business. Both segments are supported by a Corporate group that provides finance, tax, treasury, legal, regulatory, environmental, health and safety, sustainable development, corporate communications, investor and government relations, information technology, human resources, internal audit, and other administrative support.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise specified in a Prospectus Supplement, the net proceeds from the sale of the Securities will be used for general corporate purposes, which may include the repayment of indebtedness, the financing of our long-term investment plan and growth projects. The amount of net proceeds to be used for any such purpose will be set forth in the applicable Prospectus Supplement. We may, from time to time, issue securities (including Securities) other than pursuant to this Prospectus.

(1)

(2)

Transalta measures capacity as the net maximum capacity that a unit can sustain over a period of time, which is consistent with industry standards. All capacity amounts are as of the date of this prospectus and represent capacity owned by the corporation unless otherwise indicated. subtotals may not add up due to rounding.

The plant is currently not in operation. The Corporation is currently assessing the generation needs of the region and the financial feasibility of bringing the plant back into operation.

EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIOS

The following coverage ratios have been prepared in accordance with Canadian securities law requirements and are included in this Prospectus in accordance with Canadian disclosure requirements.

The following sets forth our earnings coverage ratios calculated for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2013, and the twelve month period ended September 30, 2014. The earnings coverage ratios set forth below do not give effect to the issue of any Securities pursuant to this Prospectus and do not give effect to events subsequent to September 30, 2014.

| | Twelve month period ended | |
|--|---------------------------|--------------------|
| | December 31, 2013 | September 30, 2014 |
| Earnings coverage on long-term debt ⁽¹⁾ | 0.8 times | 0.8 times |
| Earnings coverage on Preferred Shares ⁽²⁾ | 0.7 times | 0.6 times |

Notes:

(1)

Earnings coverage on long-term debt on a net earnings basis is equal to net earnings before interest expense and income taxes, divided by interest expense including capitalized interest. For purposes of calculating the earnings coverage ratios set forth herein, long-term debt includes the current portion of long-term debt and does not include any amounts with respect to securities that may be issued under this Prospectus.

(2)

Earnings coverage on Preferred Shares on a net earnings basis is equal to net earnings before interest expense and income taxes divided by interest expense including capitalized interest and Preferred Shares dividends grossed up to a before tax equivalent at a rate of 25%. For purposes of calculating the earnings coverage ratios set forth herein, long-term debt includes the current portion of long-term debt and does not include any amounts with respect to securities that may be issued under this Prospectus.

The earnings coverage ratios set forth above do not purport to be indicative of earnings coverage ratios for any future periods. The earnings coverage ratios have been calculated based on information prepared in accordance with IFRS.

We evaluate our performance using a variety of measures. Earnings coverage discussed above is not defined under IFRS and therefore, should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to, or more meaningful than, net earnings as determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of our financial performance or liquidity. This measure is not necessarily comparable to a similarly titled measure of another company. Net earnings (loss) has been calculated on a consistent basis for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2013 and the twelve month period ended September 30, 2014.

Our interest requirements, as adjusted as described above and including dividends on the Preferred Shares, amounted to approximately \$291 million and \$291 million for the 12 months ended December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2014, respectively. Our earnings (loss) before interest and income tax for the 12 month periods then ended were approximately \$197 million and \$186 million, respectively, which is 0.7 times and 0.6 times, respectively, TransAlta's interest requirements, as adjusted as described above, for such periods. TransAlta would have required additional earnings of \$43 million in respect of long term debt and \$94 million in respect of the Preferred Shares and additional earnings of \$54 million in respect of long term debt and \$105 million in respect of the Preferred Shares for the twelve month periods ended December 31, 2013 and September 30, 2014, respectively, in order to achieve an earnings coverage ratio of one-to-one for such periods.

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

General

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Corporation's authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited number of First Preferred Shares, issuable in series. As at December 16, 2014, 275,070,262 Common Shares, 12,000,000 Series A Shares, 11,000,000 Series C Shares, 9,000,000 Series E Shares and 6,600,000 Series G Shares were issued and outstanding.

Common Shares

The following description is subject to, and qualified by reference to, the terms and provisions of the Corporation's articles and by-laws.

Each Common Share of the Corporation entitles the holder thereof to one vote for each Common Share held at all meetings of shareholders of the Corporation, except meetings at which only holders of another specified class or series of shares are entitled to vote, to receive dividends if, as and when declared by the board of directors, subject to prior satisfaction of preferential dividends applicable to any First Preferred Shares, and to participate rateably in any distribution of the assets of the Corporation upon a liquidation, dissolution or winding up, subject to prior rights and privileges attaching to the First Preferred Shares. The Common Shares are not convertible and are not entitled to any pre-emptive rights. The Common Shares are not entitled to cumulative voting.

The Common Shares offered pursuant to this Prospectus may include Common Shares issuable upon conversion or exchange of any First Preferred Shares of any series or upon exercise of any Warrants or upon conversion of any Subscription Receipts.

First Preferred Shares

TransAlta is authorized to issue an unlimited number of First Preferred Shares, issuable in series and, with respect to each series, the board of directors (the "**Board**") is authorized to fix the number of shares comprising the series and determine the designation, rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to such shares, subject to certain limitations.

The First Preferred Shares of all series rank senior to all other shares of TransAlta with respect to priority in payment of dividends and with respect to distribution of assets in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, or a reduction of stated capital. Holders of First Preferred Shares are entitled to receive cumulative quarterly dividends on the subscription price thereof as and when declared by the board of directors at the rate established by the board of directors at the time of issue of shares of a series. No dividends may be declared or paid on any other shares of TransAlta unless all cumulative dividends accrued upon all outstanding First Preferred Shares have been paid or declared and set apart. In the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, or a reduction of stated capital, no sum shall be paid or assets distributed to holders of other shares of the Corporation until the holders of First Preferred Shares shall have been paid the subscription price of the shares, plus a sum equal to the premium payable on a redemption, plus a sum equal to the arrears of dividends accumulated on the First Preferred Shares to the date of such liquidation, dissolution, winding up, or reduction of stated capital, as applicable. After payment of such amount, the holders of First Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to share further in the distribution of the assets of the Corporation.

The Board may include in the share conditions attaching to a particular series of First Preferred Shares, certain voting rights effective upon the Corporation failing to make payment of six quarterly dividend payments, whether or not consecutive. These voting rights continue for so long as any dividends remain in arrears. These voting rights are the right to one vote for each \$25.00 of subscription price on all matters in respect of which shareholders vote, and additionally, the right of all series of First Preferred Shares, voting as a combined class, to elect two directors of the Corporation if the Board then consists of



less than 16 directors, or three directors if the Board consists of 16 or more directors. Otherwise, except as required by law, the holders of First Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to vote or to receive notice of or to attend at any meeting of the shareholders of TransAlta.

Subject to the share conditions attaching to any particular series providing to the contrary, TransAlta may redeem First Preferred Shares of a series, in whole or from time to time in part, at the redemption price applicable to each series and we have the right to acquire any of the First Preferred Shares of one or more series by purchase for cancellation in the open market or by invitation for tenders at a price not to exceed the redemption price applicable to the series.

The Prospectus Supplement will set forth the following terms relating to the First Preferred Shares being offered:

the maximum number of First Preferred Shares;

the designation of the series;

the offering price;

the annual dividend rate and whether the dividend rate is fixed or variable, the date from which dividends will accrue, and the dividend payment dates;

the price and the terms and conditions for redemption, if any, including redemption at TransAlta's option or at the option of the holder, including the time period for redemption, and payment of any accumulated dividends;

the terms and conditions, if any, for conversion or exchange for shares of any other class of TransAlta or any other series of First Preferred Shares, or any other securities or assets, including the price or the rate of conversion or exchange and the method, if any, of adjustment;

whether such First Preferred Shares will be listed on any securities exchange;

the voting rights, if any; and

any other rights, privileges, restrictions, or conditions.

First Preferred Shares will be fully paid and non assessable upon issuance. The First Preferred Shares of any series may be represented, in whole or in part, by one or more global certificates. If First Preferred Shares are represented by a global certificate, each global certificate will:

be registered in the name of a depositary or a nominee of the depositary identified in the applicable Prospectus Supplement; and

be deposited with such depositary or nominee or a custodian for the depositary.

Related Party Articles Provisions

The articles of the Corporation contain provisions restricting the ability of the Corporation to enter into a "**Specified Transaction**" with a "**Major Shareholder**". A Specified Transaction requires the approval of a majority of the votes cast by holders of voting shares of the Corporation, as well as the approval of a majority of the votes cast by holders of such voting shares, excluding any Major Shareholder. A Major Shareholder generally means the beneficial owner of more than 20% of the outstanding voting shares of the Corporation. There is a broad definition of beneficial ownership, and in particular, a person is considered to beneficially own shares owned by its associates and affiliates, as those terms are defined in the articles. Transactions which are considered to be Specified Transactions include the following: a merger or

amalgamation of the Corporation with a Major Shareholder; the furnishing of financial assistance by the Corporation to a Major Shareholder; certain sales of assets or provision of services by the Corporation to a Major Shareholder or vice versa; certain issuances of securities by the Corporation which increase the

proportionate voting interest of a Major Shareholder; a reorganization or recapitalization of the Corporation which increases the proportionate voting interest of a Major Shareholder; and the creation of a class or series of non-voting shares of the Corporation which has a residual right to participate in earnings of the Corporation and assets of the Corporation upon dissolution or winding up.

Shareholder Rights Plan

TransAlta implemented a shareholder rights plan (the "**Rights Plan**") pursuant to a Shareholder Bid Approval Plan Agreement (the "**Rights Plan Agreement**") dated as of October 13, 1992 between the Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company. The holders of Common Shares reconfirmed the Rights Plan and approved the amendment and restatement, as of April 23, 2013, of the Rights Plan Agreement at the annual and special meeting of shareholders of the Corporation held on April 23, 2013. For further particulars, reference should be made to the Rights Plan Agreement, as amended and restated. A copy of the Rights Plan Agreement may be obtained by contacting the Vice President Legal and Corporate Secretary, TransAlta Corporation, P.O. Box 1900, Station "M", 110 - 12th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 2M1; telephone: (403) 267-7110; fax (403) 267-2590; or by email: investor_relations@transalta.com. A copy of the Rights Plan Agreement can also be accessed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

General

The Corporation may issue Warrants independently or together with other securities, and Warrants sold with other securities may be attached to or separate from the other securities. Warrants will be issued under one or more warrant agreements between the Corporation and a warrant agent that the Corporation will name in the applicable Prospectus Supplement.

Selected provisions of the Warrants and the warrant agreements are summarized below. This summary is not complete. The statements made in this Prospectus relating to any warrant agreement and Warrants to be issued thereunder are summaries of certain anticipated provisions thereof and are subject to, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, all provisions of the applicable warrant agreement.

The Prospectus Supplement will set forth the following terms relating to the Warrants being offered:

the designation of the Warrants;

the aggregate number of Warrants offered and the offering price;

the designation, number and terms of the Common Shares, First Preferred Shares or other securities purchasable upon exercise of the Warrants, and procedures that will result in the adjustment of those numbers;

the exercise price of the Warrants;

the dates or periods during which the Warrants are exercisable;

the designation and terms of any securities with which the Warrants are issued;

if the Warrants are issued as a unit with another security, the date on and after which the Warrants and the other security will be separately transferable;

the currency or currency unit in which the exercise price is denominated;

any minimum or maximum amount of Warrants that may be exercised at any one time;

whether such Warrants will be listed on any securities exchange;

any terms, procedures and limitations relating to the transferability, exchange or exercise of the Warrants; and

any other terms of the Warrants.

Warrant certificates will be exchangeable for new warrant certificates of different denominations at the office indicated in the Prospectus Supplement. Prior to the exercise of their Warrants, holders of Warrants will not have any of the rights of holders of the securities subject to the Warrants.

Modifications

The Corporation may amend the warrant agreements and the Warrants, without the consent of the holders of the Warrants, to cure any ambiguity, to cure, correct or supplement any defective or inconsistent provision, or in any other manner that will not materially and adversely affect the interests of holders of outstanding Warrants. Other amendment provisions shall be as indicated in the Prospectus Supplement.

Enforceability

The warrant agent will act solely as the Corporation's agent. The warrant agent will not have any duty or responsibility if the Corporation defaults under the warrant agreements or the warrant certificates. A Warrant holder may, without the consent of the warrant agent, enforce by appropriate legal action on its own behalf the holder's right to exercise the holder's Warrants.

DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPTS

The Corporation may issue Subscription Receipts, independently or together with other securities. Subscription Receipts will be issued under one or more subscription receipt agreements.

A Subscription Receipt is a security of the Corporation that will entitle the holder to receive one Common Share upon the completion of a transaction, typically an acquisition by us of the assets or securities of another entity. After the offering of Subscription Receipts, the subscription proceeds for the Subscription Receipts are held in escrow by the designated escrow agent, pending the completion of the transaction. Holders of Subscription Receipts will not have any rights of shareholders of the Corporation. Holders of Subscription Receipts are only entitled to receive Common Shares upon the surrender of their Subscription Receipts to the escrow agent or to a return of the subscription price for the Subscription Receipts together with any payments in lieu of interest or other income earned on the subscription proceeds.

Selected provisions of the Subscription Receipts and the subscription receipt agreements are summarized below. This summary is not complete. The statements made in this Prospectus relating to any subscription receipt agreement and Subscription Receipts to be issued thereunder are summarises of certain anticipated provisions thereof and are subject to, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, all provisions of the applicable subscription receipt agreement.

The Prospectus Supplement will set forth the following terms relating to the Subscription Receipts being offered:

the designation of the Subscription Receipts;

the aggregate number of Subscription Receipts offered and the offering price;

the terms, conditions and procedures for which the holders of Subscription Receipts will become entitled to receive Common Shares;

the number of Common Shares that may be obtained upon the conversion of each Subscription Receipt and the period or periods during which any conversion must occur;

the designation and terms of any other securities with which the Subscription Receipts will be offered, if any, and the number of Subscription Receipts that will be offered with each security;

the gross proceeds from the sale of such Subscription Receipts, including (if applicable) the terms applicable to the gross proceeds from the sale of such Subscription Receipts, plus any interest earned thereon;

the material income tax consequences of owning, holding and disposing of such Subscription Receipts;

whether such Subscription Receipts will be listed on any securities exchange;

any terms, procedures and limitations relating to the transferability, exchange or conversion of the Subscription Receipts; and

any other material terms and conditions of the Subscription Receipts.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

In this section, the terms "Corporation" and "TransAlta" refer only to TransAlta Corporation without its subsidiaries through which it operates. The following description of debt securities sets forth certain general terms and provisions of the debt securities that may be offered under this Prospectus and in respect of which a Prospectus Supplement may be filed. The Corporation will provide particular terms and provisions of a series of debt securities and a description of how the general terms and provisions described below may apply to that series in a Prospectus Supplement. Prospective investors should rely on information in the applicable Prospectus Supplement if it is different from the following information.

The debt securities will be issued under an indenture (the "**Indenture**") dated as of June 25, 2002 between TransAlta and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) as trustee (the "**Trustee**"). The Indenture is subject to, and governed by, the U.S. Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. The Indenture has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this Prospectus is a part and is available as described above under "*Certain Available Information*". The following is a summary of the Indenture. Whenever there are references to particular provisions of the Indenture, those provisions are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Indenture. References in parentheses are to section numbers of the Indenture.

The Corporation may issue debt securities and incur additional indebtedness other than through the offering of debt securities pursuant to this Prospectus.

General

The Indenture does not limit the aggregate principal amount of debt securities which may be issued under the Indenture. It provides that debt securities may be issued from time to time in one or more series and may be denominated and payable in U.S. dollars or any other currency. Material Canadian and United States federal income tax considerations applicable to any debt securities, and special tax considerations applicable to the debt securities denominated in a currency or currency unit other than Canadian or U.S. dollars, will be described in the Prospectus Supplement relating to the offering of debt securities.

The Prospectus Supplement will set forth the following terms relating to the debt securities being offered:

the specific designation and any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities;

the extent and manner, if any, to which payment on or in respect of the debt securities will be senior or will be subordinated to the prior payment of other liabilities and obligations of TransAlta;

the percentage or percentages of principal amount at which the debt securities will be issued;

the date or dates on which the principal (and premium, if any) on the debt securities will be payable;

the rate or rates (whether fixed or variable) at which the debt securities will bear interest, if any (or the manner of calculation thereof) and the date or dates from which such interest will accrue;

the dates on which any interest will be payable and the regular record dates for the payment of interest on debt securities in registered form;

the place or places where the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest, if any, on the debt securities will be payable and each office or agency where the debt securities may be presented for registration of transfer or exchange;

the currency or currency unit in which the debt securities are denominated or in which payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest, if any, on such debt securities will be payable;

whether debt securities will be issuable in the form of one or more global securities and if so the identity of the depository for the global securities;

any mandatory or optional sinking fund provisions;

the period or periods, if any, within which, the price or prices at which, the currency or currency unit in which, and the terms and conditions upon which, the debt securities may be redeemed or purchased by TransAlta;

the terms and conditions, if any, upon which TransAlta or the purchaser may redeem debt securities prior to maturity and the price or prices at which and the currency or currency unit in which the debt securities are payable;

any index used to determine the amount of payments of principal of (and premium, if any) or interest, if any, on the debt securities;

the terms, if any, on which the debt securities may be converted or exchanged for other securities of TransAlta or other entities;

whether and under what circumstances TransAlta will pay additional amounts on the debt securities in respect of certain taxes (and the terms of any such payment) and, if so, whether TransAlta has the right to redeem the debt securities of any series rather than pay the additional amounts (and terms of any such right);

if debt securities are to be listed on any securities exchange;

whether the debt securities of the series are to be issuable as registered securities, bearer securities (with or without coupons) or both;

if other than denominations of US\$1,000 and any integral multiple thereof, the denominations in which any registered securities of the series shall be issuable and, if applicable the denomination of any bearer securities; and

any other terms of the debt securities including covenants and Events of Default which apply solely to a particular series of debt securities being offered which do not apply generally to the debt securities, or any covenants or Events of Default generally applicable to debt securities which do not apply to a particular series of debt securities (Section 3.1).

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, the Indenture does not afford the holders the right to tender debt securities to TransAlta for repurchase or provide for any increase in

the rate or rates of interest at which the debt securities will bear interest, in the event TransAlta should become involved in a highly leveraged transaction or in the event of a change in control of TransAlta.

Debt securities may be issued under the Indenture bearing no interest or interest at a rate below the prevailing market rate at the time of issuance, and may be offered and sold at a discount below their stated principal amount. The Canadian and United States federal income tax consequences and other special considerations applicable to any such discounted debt securities or other debt securities offered and sold at par which are treated as having been issued at a discount for Canadian and/or United States federal income tax purposes will be described in the applicable Prospectus Supplement.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, TransAlta may, without the consent of the holders thereof reopen a previous issue of a series of debt securities and issue additional debt securities of such series.

Ranking and Other Indebtedness

Unless otherwise indicated in an applicable Prospectus Supplement, the debt securities will be unsecured obligations and will rank equally with all of TransAlta's other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness. TransAlta conducts a significant amount of its operations through its subsidiaries. As at September 30, 2014, our subsidiaries had outstanding \$381 million aggregate principal amount of long term debt (excluding intercompany indebtedness). The debt securities issued under this Prospectus will be structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities, including trade payables and other indebtedness of our subsidiaries.

Form, Denominations and Exchange

Debt securities of a series are issuable as registered securities in denominations of US\$1,000 and integral multiples of US\$1,000 or in such other denominations as may be set out in the terms of the debt securities of any particular series (Section 3.2). The Indenture also provides that debt securities of a series may be issuable in global form (Section 3.1).

Registered securities of any series will be exchangeable for other registered securities of the same series and of a like aggregate principal amount and tenor of different authorized denominations (Section 3.5).

The applicable Prospectus Supplement may indicate the places to register a transfer of debt securities. Except for certain restrictions set forth in the Indenture, no service charge will be made for any registration of transfer or exchange of the debt securities, but the Corporation may, in certain instances, require a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charges payable in connection with these transactions (Section 3.5).

We shall not be required to: (i) issue, register the transfer of or exchange debt securities of any series during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before any selection of debt securities of that series to be redeemed and ending at the close of business on the day of mailing of the relevant notice of redemption; (ii) register the transfer of or exchange any registered security, or portion thereof, called for redemption, except the unredeemed portion of any registered security being redeemed in part; or (iii) issue, register the transfer of or exchange any debt securities which have been surrendered for repayment at the option of the holder, except the portion, if any, thereof not to be so repaid (Section 3.5).

Under limited circumstances, we may issue debt securities in bearer form, in which case the applicable Prospectus Supplement will contain information regarding form, denomination and exchange of those bearer securities.



Payment

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest, if any, on debt securities (other than global securities) will be made at the office or agency of the Trustee, at One Wall Street, New York, New York, 10286, or TransAlta can pay principal, interest and any premium by (i) cheque, mailed or delivered to the address of the person entitled at the address appearing in the security register of the Trustee or (ii) wire transfer to an account located in the United States of the person entitled to receive payments (Sections 3.7, 10.1 and 10.2).

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Prospectus Supplement, payment of any interest will be made to the persons in whose name the debt securities are registered at the close of business on the day or days specified by TransAlta (Section 3.7).

Global Securities

The registered debt securities of a series may be issued in whole or in part in global form (a "**Global Security**") and will be registered in the name of and be deposited with a depository (the "**Depositary**"), or its nominee, each of which will be identified in the Prospectus Supplement (Section 3.1). Unless and until exchanged, in whole or in part, for debt securities in definitive registered form, a Global Security may not be transferred except as a whole by the Depositary for such Global Security to a nominee of the Depositary, by a nominee of the Depositary to the Depositary or another nominee of the Depositary or any such nominee to a successor of the Depositary or a nominee of the successor (Section 3.5).

The specific terms of the depository arrangement with respect to any portion of a particular series of debt securities to be represented by a Global Security will be described in the Prospectus Supplement relating to such series. The Corporation anticipates that the following provisions will apply to all depository arrangements.

Upon the issuance of a Global Security, the Depositary therefor or its nominee will credit, on its book entry and registration system, the respective principal amounts of the debt securities represented by the Global Security to the accounts of such persons having accounts with such Depositary or its nominee ("**participants**"). Such accounts shall be designated by the underwriters, dealers or agents participating in the distribution of the debt securities or by TransAlta if such debt securities are offered and sold directly by the Corporation. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Global Security will be limited to participants or persons that may hold beneficial interests through participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Global Security will be shown on, and the transfer of that ownership will be effected only through, records maintained by the Depositary therefor or its nominee (with respect to interests of participants) or by participants or persons that hold through participants (with respect to interests of persons other than participants). The laws of some states in the United States may require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive form.

So long as the Depositary for a Global Security or its nominee is the registered owner of the Global Security, such Depositary or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the debt securities represented by the Global Security for all purposes under the Indenture. Except as provided below, owners of beneficial interests in a Global Security will not be entitled to have debt securities of the series represented by the Global Security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of debt securities of such series in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders thereof under the Indenture.

Any payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on Global Securities registered in the name of a Depositary or its nominee will be made to the Depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the Global Security representing such debt securities. None of TransAlta, the Trustee or any paying agent for debt securities represented by the Global Security will have any responsibility or



liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests of the Global Security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

The Corporation expects that the Depositary for a Global Security or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of principal, premium or interest, will credit participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of the Global Security as shown on the records of such Depositary or its nominee. The Corporation also expects that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in a Global Security held through such participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers registered in "street name", and will be the responsibility of such participants.

If a Depositary for a Global Security representing a particular series of debt securities is at any time unwilling or unable or no longer qualified to continue as depository and a successor depository is not appointed by TransAlta within 90 days, the Corporation will issue debt securities of such series in definitive form in exchange for a Global Security representing such series of debt securities. Further, if an Event of Default under the Indenture occurs and is continuing, debt securities of a series in definitive form will be printed and delivered. In addition, the Corporation may at any time and in its sole discretion determine not to have debt securities of a series represented by a Global Security and, in such event, will issue debt securities of a series in definitive form in exchange for all of the Global Securities representing the series of debt securities (Section 3.5).

Definitions

The Indenture contains, among others, definitions substantially to the following effect:

"Attributable Amount" means with respect to any sale and leaseback transaction (as defined herein under the heading "*Covenants Restrictions on Sales and Leasebacks*" below), as at the time of determination, the present value (discounted at the rate of interest set forth or implicit in the terms of such lease, compounded annually) of the total obligations of the lessee for rental payments during the remaining term of the lease included in such sale and leaseback transaction.

"**Consolidated Net Tangible Assets**" means all consolidated assets of the Corporation as shown on the most recent audited consolidated balance sheet of the Corporation, less the aggregate of the following amounts reflected upon such balance sheet:

(a)

all goodwill, deferred assets, trademarks, copyrights and other similar intangible assets;

(b)

to the extent not already deducted in computing such assets and without duplication, depreciation, depletion, amortization, reserves and any other account which reflects a decrease in the value of an asset or a periodic allocation of the cost of an asset; provided that no such deduction shall be made to the extent such account reflects a decrease in the value or periodic allocation of the cost of any assets referred to in (a) above;

- minority interests;
- (d)

(c)

current liabilities; and

(e)

assets created, developed, constructed or acquired with or in respect of which Non-Recourse Debt has been incurred, and any and all receivables, inventory, equipment, chattel paper, intangibles and other rights or collateral arising from or connected with those assets (including the shares or other ownership interests of a single purpose entity which holds only such assets and other rights and collateral arising from or connected therewith) and to which recourse of the lender of such Non-Recourse Debt is limited to the extent of the outstanding Non-Recourse Debt financing such assets.

"**Consolidated Shareholders' Equity**" means, without duplication, the aggregate amount of shareholders' equity (including, without limitation, common share capital, preferred share capital, contributed surplus and retained earnings) of the Corporation as shown on the most recent audited consolidated balance sheet of the Corporation, adjusted by the amount by which common share capital, preferred share capital and contributed surplus has been increased or decreased (as the case may be) from the date of such balance sheet to the relevant date of determination, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, together with the aggregate principal amount of obligations of the Corporation in respect of Preferred Securities.

"Financial Instrument Obligations" means obligations arising under:

(a)

any interest swap agreement, forward rate agreement, floor, cap or collar agreement, futures or options, insurance or other similar agreement or arrangement, or any combination thereof, entered into or guaranteed by the Corporation where the subject matter of the same is interest rates or the price, value, or amount payable thereunder is dependent or based upon the interest rates or fluctuations in interest rates in effect from time to time (but, for certainty, shall exclude conventional floating rate debt);

(b)

any currency swap agreement, cross currency agreement, forward agreement, floor, cap or collar agreement, futures or options, insurance or other similar agreement or arrangement, or any combination thereof, entered into or guaranteed by the Corporation where the subject matter of the same is currency exchange rates or the price, value or amount payable thereunder is dependent or based upon currency exchange rates or fluctuations in currency exchange rates in effect from time to time; and

(c)

any agreement for the making or taking of any commodity (including natural gas, oil or electricity), any commodity swap agreement, floor, cap or collar agreement or commodity future or option or other similar agreements or arrangements, or any combination thereof, entered into or guaranteed by the Corporation where the subject matter of the same is any commodity or the price, value or amount payable thereunder is dependent or based upon the price of any commodity or fluctuations in the price of any commodity;

to the extent of the net amount due or accruing due by the Corporation thereunder (determined by marking to market the same in accordance with their terms).

"Generally Accepted Accounting Principles" means generally accepted accounting principles which are in effect from time to time in Canada.

"Indebtedness" means all items of indebtedness in respect of any amounts borrowed (including obligations with respect to bankers' acceptances and contingent reimbursement obligations relating to letters of credit and other financial instruments) and all Purchase Money Obligations which, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, would be recorded in the financial statements as at the date as of which Indebtedness is to be determined, and in any event including, without duplication:

(a)

obligations secured by any Security Interest existing on property owned subject to such Security Interest, whether or not the obligations secured thereby shall have been assumed; and

(b)

guarantees, indemnities, endorsements (other than endorsements for collection in the ordinary course of business) or other contingent liabilities in respect of obligations of another person for indebtedness of that other person in respect of any amounts borrowed by them.

"Material Subsidiary" means, at any time, a Subsidiary:

(a)

the total assets of which represent more than 10% of the total assets of the Corporation determined on a consolidated basis as shown in the most recent audited consolidated balance sheet of the Corporation; or

(b)

the total revenues of which represent more than 10% of the total revenues of the Corporation determined on a consolidated basis as shown in the consolidated income statement of the Corporation for the four most recent fiscal quarters of the Corporation.

"**Non-Recourse Debt**" means any Indebtedness incurred to finance the creation, development, construction or acquisition of assets and any increases in or extensions, renewals or refundings of any such Indebtedness, provided that the recourse of the lender thereof or any agent, trustee, receiver or other person acting on behalf of the lender in respect of such Indebtedness in respect thereof is limited in all circumstances (other than in respect of false or misleading representations or warranties and customary indemnities provided with respect to such financings) to the assets created, developed, constructed or acquired in respect of which such Indebtedness has been incurred and to any receivables, inventory, equipment, chattel paper, intangibles and other rights or collateral arising from or connected with the assets so created, developed, constructed or acquired in the single purpose entity which holds only such assets and other rights and collateral arising from or connected therewith) and to which the lender has recourse.

"Permitted Encumbrance" means any of the following:

| (a) | any Security Interest existing as of the date of the first issuance by the Corporation of debt securities issued pursuant to the Indenture, or arising thereafter pursuant to contractual commitments entered into prior to such issuance; |
|-----|---|
| (b) | any Security Interest created, incurred or assumed to secure any Purchase Money Obligation; |
| (c) | any Security Interest created, incurred or assumed to secure any Non-Recourse Debt; |
| (d) | any Security Interest in favour of any Wholly owned Subsidiary; |
| (e) | any Security Interest on property of a corporation or its Subsidiaries which Security Interest exists at the time such corporation is merged into, or amalgamated or consolidated with the Corporation or such property is otherwise directly or indirectly acquired by the Corporation, other than a Security Interest incurred in contemplation of such merger, amalgamation, consolidation or acquisition; |
| (f) | any Security Interest securing any Indebtedness to any bank or banks or other lending institution or institutions incurred in the ordinary course of business and for the purpose of carrying on the same, repayable on demand or maturing within 12 months of the date when such Indebtedness is incurred or the date of any renewal or extension thereof; |
| (g) | any Security Interest on or against cash or marketable debt securities pledged to secure Financial Instrument Obligations; |
| (h) | certain Security Interests in respect of liens or other encumbrances, not related to the borrowing of money, incurred or arising by operation of law or in the ordinary course of business; |
| (i) | any extension, renewal, alteration or replacement (or successive extensions, renewals, alterations or replacements) in whole or in part, of any Security Interest referred to in the foregoing clauses (a) through (h) inclusive, provided the extension, renewal, alteration or replacement of such Security Interest is limited to all or any part of the same property that secured the Security Interest extended, renewed, altered or replaced (plus improvements on such property) and the principal amount of the Indebtedness secured thereby is not increased; and |
| (j) | any other Security Interest if the aggregate amount of Indebtedness secured pursuant to this clause (j) (together with the |

Attributable Amount of any sale and leaseback) does not exceed 20% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets.

"Preferred Securities" means securities which on the date of issue thereof by a person:

| (a) | have a term to maturity of more than 30 years; |
|-----|---|
| (b) | rank subordinate to the unsecured and unsubordinated Indebtedness of such person outstanding on such date; |
| (c) | entitle such person to defer the payment of interest thereon for more than four years without thereby causing an event of default in respect of such securities to occur; and |
| (d) | entitle such person to satisfy the obligation to make payments of deferred interest thereon from the proceeds of the issuance of its shares. |

"**Purchase Money Obligation**" means any monetary obligation created or assumed as part of the purchase price of real or tangible personal property, whether or not secured, any extensions, renewals, alterations or replacements of any such obligation, provided that the principal amount of such obligation outstanding on the date of such extension, renewal, alteration or replacement is not increased and further provided that any security given in respect of such obligation shall not extend to any property other than the property acquired in connection with which such obligation was created or assumed and fixed improvements, if any, erected or constructed thereon.

"Security Interest" means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance, assignment by way of security, title retention agreement or other security interest whatsoever, howsoever created or arising, whether absolute or contingent, fixed or floating, perfected or not, which secures payment or performance of an obligation.

"Subsidiary" means, in relation to a person:

(a)

any corporation of which at least a majority of the outstanding shares having by the terms thereof ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation (irrespective of whether at the time shares of any other class or classes of such corporation might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency, unless the contingency has occurred and then only for as long as it continues) is at the time directly, indirectly or beneficially owned or controlled by the person or one or more of its Subsidiaries, or the person and one or more of its Subsidiaries;

(b)

any partnership of which the person or one or more of its Subsidiaries, or the person and one or more of its Subsidiaries: (i) directly, indirectly or beneficially own or control more than 50% of the income, capital, beneficial or ownership interests (however designated) thereof; and (ii) is a general partner, in the case of a limited partnership, or is a partner that has authority to bind the partnership, in all other cases; or

(c)

any other person of which at least a majority of the income, capital, beneficial or ownership interests (however designated) are at the time directly, indirectly or beneficially owned or controlled by the first mentioned person or one or more of its Subsidiaries, or the first mentioned person and one or more of its Subsidiaries.

"Wholly owned Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary that the Corporation directly or indirectly beneficially owns 100% of the outstanding shares having by the terms thereof ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such Subsidiary or owns, directly or indirectly, 100% of the income, capital, beneficial or ownership interests (however designated) thereof.

Covenants

The Indenture contains covenants substantially to the following effect:

Negative Pledge

So long as any debt securities remain outstanding the Corporation and its Subsidiaries will not create, assume or otherwise have outstanding any Security Interest, except for Permitted Encumbrances, on or over its or their respective assets (present or future) in respect of any Indebtedness of any person unless, in the opinion of legal counsel to the Corporation or the Trustee, the obligations of the Corporation in respect of all debt securities then outstanding shall be secured equally and rateably therewith (Section 10.12).

Restriction on Sales and Leasebacks

The Corporation will not, and will not permit any Subsidiary to, enter into any sale and leaseback transaction unless the Corporation and its Subsidiaries comply with this restrictive covenant. A "sale and leaseback transaction" is an arrangement between the Corporation or any Subsidiary and a bank, insurance company or other lender or investor where the Corporation or any Subsidiary lease real or personal property which was or will be sold by the Corporation or any Subsidiary to that lender or investor. The Corporation can comply with this restrictive covenant if it meets either of the following conditions:

(a)

the sale and leaseback transaction is entered into prior to, concurrently with or within 270 days after the acquisition, the completion of construction (including any improvements on an existing property) or the commencement of commercial operations of the property; or

(b)

the Corporation or its Subsidiaries could otherwise grant a Security Interest on the property as a Permitted Encumbrance described in " Negative Pledge" (Section 10.10).

Mergers, Consolidations, Amalgamations and Sale of Assets

The Corporation will not enter into any transaction whereby all or substantially all of its undertaking, property and assets would become the property of any other person (the "**Successor**"), whether by reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement, merger, transfer, sale, or otherwise, unless:

(a)

the Successor expressly assumes all of the covenants and obligations of the Corporation under the Indenture and the transaction otherwise meets all of the requirements of the Indenture;

(b)

the entity formed by or continuing from such consolidation or amalgamation or into which the Corporation is merged or with which the Corporation enters into such arrangement or the person which acquires or leases all or substantially all of the Corporation's properties and assets is organized and existing under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia or the laws of Canada or any province thereof;

(c)

immediately before and after giving effect to such transaction, no event of default, and no event which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an event of default, shall have happened and be continuing; and

(d)

no condition or event will exist as to the Corporation (at the time of such transaction) or the Successor (immediately after such transaction) and after giving full effect thereto or immediately after the Successor will become liable to pay the principal monies, premium, if any, interest and other monies due or which may become due hereunder, which constitutes or would constitute an Event of Default under the Indenture.

In addition to the above conditions, such transaction will, to the satisfaction of the Trustee, substantially preserve and not impair any of the rights and powers of the Trustee or of the security holders (Section 8.1).

If, as a result of any consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement, merger or upon any sale, conveyance, transfer or lease of all or substantially all of the properties and assets of the Corporation to any other person, any of the properties or assets of the Corporation or its Subsidiaries become subject to a Security Interest, then, unless such Security Interest could be created pursuant to the Indenture provisions described under "Negative Pledge" above without equally and rateably securing debt securities, the Corporation, simultaneously with or prior to such transaction, will cause any debt securities of the Corporation then outstanding to be secured equally and rateably with or prior to the Indebtedness secured by such Security Interest (Section 8.4).

Payment of Additional Amounts

Unless otherwise specified in an applicable Prospectus Supplement, TransAlta will, subject to the exceptions and limitations set forth below, pay to the holder of any debt security who is a non resident of Canada under the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) such additional amounts as may be necessary so that every net payment on such debt security, after deduction or withholding by TransAlta or any of its paying agents for or on account of any present or future tax, assessment or other governmental charge (including penalties, interest and other liabilities related thereto) imposed by the government of Canada (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein) (collectively, "**Canadian Taxes**") upon or as a result of such payment, will not be less than the amount provided in such debt security or in such coupon to be then due and payable (and TransAlta will remit the full amount withheld to the relevant authority in accordance with applicable law). However, TransAlta will not be required to make any payment of additional amounts:

(a)

to any person in respect of whom such taxes are required to be withheld or deducted as a result of such person not dealing at arm's length with TransAlta (within the meaning of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada));

(b)

to any person by reason of such person being connected with Canada (otherwise than merely by holding or ownership of any series of debt securities or receiving any payments or exercising any rights thereunder), including without limitation a non resident insurer who carries on an insurance business in Canada and in a country other than Canada;

(c)

for or on account of any tax, assessment or other governmental charge which would not have been so imposed but for: (i) the presentation by the holder of such debt security or coupon for payment on a date more than 30 days after the date on which such payment became due and payable or the date on which payment thereof is duly provided for, whichever occurs later; or (ii) the holder's failure to comply with any certification, identification, information, documentation or other reporting requirements if compliance is required by law, regulation, administrative practice or an applicable treaty as a precondition to exemption from or a reduction in the rate of deduction or withholding of; any such taxes, assessment or charge;

(d)

for or on account of any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, transfer, personal property tax or any similar tax, assessment or other governmental charge;

(e)

for or on account of any tax, assessment or other governmental charge required to be withheld by any paying agent from any payment to a person on a debt security if such payment can be made to such person without such withholding by at least one other paying agent the identity of which is provided to such person;

(f)

(g)

- for or on account of any tax, assessment or other governmental charge which is payable otherwise than by withholding from a payment on a debt security; or
 - for any combination of items (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f);

nor will additional amounts be paid with respect to any payment on a debt security to a holder who is a fiduciary or partnership or other than the sole beneficial owner of such payment to the extent such payment would be required by the laws of Canada (or any political subdivision thereof) to be included in the income for Canadian federal income tax purposes of a beneficiary or settlor with respect to such fiduciary or a member of such payment would not have been entitled to payment of the additional amounts had such beneficiary, settlor, member or beneficial owner been the holder of such debt security.

The Corporation will furnish to the holders of the debt securities, within 30 days after the date of the payment of any Canadian Taxes is due under applicable law, certified copies of tax receipts or other documents evidencing such payment.

Wherever in the Indenture there is mentioned, in any context, the payment of principal (and premium, if any), redemption price, interest or any other amount payable under or with respect to a debt security, such mention shall be deemed to include mention of the payment of additional amounts to the extent that, in such context additional amounts are, were or would be payable in respect thereof (Section 10.5).

Redemption

If and to the extent specified in an applicable Prospectus Supplement, the debt securities of a series will be subject to redemption at the time or times specified therein, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof together with accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for redemption, upon the giving of a notice. Notice of redemption of the debt securities of such series will be given once not more than 60 nor less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption and will specify the date fixed for redemption (Section 11.4).

Provision of Financial Information

TransAlta will file with the Trustee, within 15 days after it files them with the SEC, copies of its annual report and of the information, documents and other reports (or copies of such portions of any of the foregoing as the SEC may by rules and regulations prescribe) which TransAlta is required to file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Exchange Act. Notwithstanding that TransAlta may not be required to remain subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the U.S. Exchange Act or otherwise report on an annual and quarterly basis on forms provided for such annual and quarterly reporting pursuant to rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC, TransAlta will continue to provide the Trustee (a) within 140 days after the end of each fiscal year, the information required to be contained in annual reports on Form 20-F or Form 40-F as applicable (or any successor form); and (b) within 60 days after the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year, the information required to be contained in reports on Form 6-K (or any successor form), which, regardless of applicable requirements shall, at a minimum, consist of such information required to be provided in quarterly reports under the laws of Canada or any province thereof to security holders of a corporation with securities listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange, whether or not TransAlta has any of its securities listed on such exchange. Such information will be prepared in accordance with Canadian disclosure requirements and Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (Section 7.5).

Events of Default

Unless otherwise specified in the Prospectus Supplement relating to a particular series of debt securities, the following events are defined in the Indenture as "Events of Default" with respect to debt securities of any series: (a) the failure of the Corporation to pay when due the principal of or premium (if any) on any debt securities; (b) the failure of the Corporation, continuing for 30 days, to pay any interest due on any debt securities; (c) the breach or violation of any covenant or condition (other than as referred

to in (a) and (b) above), which continues for a period of 60 days after notice from the Trustee or from holders of at least 25% in principal amount of all outstanding debt securities of any series affected thereby (or such longer period as may be agreed to by the Trustee); (d) the failure of the Corporation or any Subsidiary to pay when due (after giving effect to any applicable grace periods) any amount owing in respect of any Indebtedness other than Non-Recourse Debt, or the Corporation or any Subsidiary otherwise defaults in connection with such Indebtedness, and if such Indebtedness has not matured it shall have been accelerated, provided that the aggregate principal amount of such Indebtedness is in excess of the greater of US\$75 million and 3% of Consolidated Shareholders' Equity; (e) the taking or entry of certain judgments or decrees against the Corporation or any Material Subsidiary for the payment of money in excess of the greater of US\$75 million and 3% of Consolidated Shareholders' Equity, in the aggregate, if the Corporation or any such Material Subsidiary, as the case may be, fails to file an appeal or, if the Corporation or such Material Subsidiary, as the case may be does file an appeal, that judgment or decree is not and does not remain vacated, discharged or stayed as provided in the Indenture; (f) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization involving the Corporation or a Material Subsidiary; or (g) any other Event of Default provided with respect to debt securities of that series (Section 5.1).

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing with respect to any series of debt securities, then and in every such case the Trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of such affected series may, subject to any subordination provisions thereof; declare the entire principal amount (or, if the debt securities of that series are original issue discount debt securities, such portion of the principal amount as may be specified in the terms of that series) of all debt securities of such series and all interest thereon to be immediately due and payable. However, at any time after a declaration of acceleration with respect to any series of debt securities has been made, but before a judgment or decree for payment of the money due has been obtained, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series, by written notice to the Corporation and the Trustee under certain circumstances (which include payment or deposit with the Trustee of outstanding principal, premium, interest and sums paid or advanced by the Trustee under the Indenture and the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel, unless the Prospectus Supplement applicable to an issue of debt securities otherwise provides), may rescind and annul such acceleration (Section 5.2).

Reference is made to the Prospectus Supplement relating to each series of debt securities which are original issue discount securities for the particular provisions relating to acceleration of the maturity of a portion of the principal amount of such original issue discount securities upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and the continuation hereof.

The Indenture provides that, subject to the duty of the Trustee during default to act with the required standard of care, the Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights and powers under the Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders, unless such holders shall have offered to the Trustee reasonable indemnity (Section 6.2). Subject to such provisions for indemnification of the Trustee and certain other limitations set forth in the Indenture, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of all series affected by an Event of Default shall have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Trustee, with respect to the debt securities of all series affected by such Event of Default (Section 5.12).

No holder of a debt security of any series will have any right to institute any proceeding with respect to the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or a Trustee, or for any other remedy thereunder, unless (a) such holder has previously given to the Trustee written notice of a continuing Event of Default with respect to the debt securities of such series affected by such Event of Default, (b) the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of such series affected by such Event of Default have made written request, and such holder or holders have offered reasonable indemnity, to the Trustee to institute such proceeding as Trustee, and (c) the Trustee has failed to institute

such proceeding, and has not received from the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of such series affected by such Event of Default a direction inconsistent with such request, within 60 days after such notice, request and offer (Section 5.7). However, such limitations do not apply to a suit instituted by the holder of a debt security for the enforcement of payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on such debt security on or after the applicable due date specified in such debt security (Section 5.8).

The Corporation will be required to furnish to the Trustee annually a statement by certain of its officers as to whether or not the Corporation, to the best of their knowledge, is in compliance with all conditions and covenants of the Indenture and, if not, specifying all such known defaults (Section 10.4).

Modification and Waiver

Modifications and amendments of the Indenture may be made by the Corporation and the Trustee with the consent of the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each series issued under the Indenture affected by such modification or amendment; provided, however, that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the holder of each outstanding debt security of such affected series: (1) change the stated maturity of the principal of; or any instalment of interest, if any, on any debt security; (2) reduce the principal amount of, or the premium, if any, or the rate of interest, if any, on any debt security; (3) change the place of payment; (4) change the currency or currency unit of payment of principal of (or premium, if any) or interest, if any, on any debt security; (5) impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or with respect to any debt security; (6) adversely affect any right to convert or exchange any debt security; (7) reduce the percentage of principal amount of outstanding debt securities of such series, the consent of the holders of the Indenture or for waiver of certain defaults; (8) reduce the voting or quorum requirements relating to meetings of holders of debt securities; or (9) modify any provisions of the Indenture relating to the modification and amendment of the Indenture or the waiver of past defaults or covenants except as otherwise specified in the Indenture (Section 9.2). In addition, any amendment to, or waiver of; the provisions of the Indenture relating to subordination that adversely affects the rights of the holders of debt securities will require the consent of holders of at least 75% in aggregate principal amount of such debt securities then outstanding (Section 9.2).

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any series may on behalf of the holders of all debt securities of that series waive, insofar as that series is concerned, compliance by the Corporation with certain restrictive provisions of the Indenture (Section 10.13). The holders of a majority in principal amount of outstanding debt securities of any series may waive any past default under the Indenture with respect to that series, except a default in the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) and interest, if any, on any debt security of that series or in respect of a provision which under the Indenture or the debt securities may be amended or supplemented, without the consent of any holder of debt securities, to cure any ambiguity or inconsistency or to make any change that does not have an adverse effect on the rights of any holder of debt securities (Section 9.1).

Defeasance

The Indenture provides that, at its option, TransAlta will be discharged from any and all obligations in respect of the outstanding debt securities of any series upon irrevocable deposit with the Trustee, in trust, of money, government securities or a combination thereof which will provide money in an amount sufficient in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent chartered accountants to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and each instalment of interest, if any, on the outstanding debt securities of such series ("**Defeasance**") (except with respect to the authentication, transfer, exchange or replacement

of debt securities or the maintenance of a place of payment and certain other obligations set forth in the Indenture). Such trust may only be established if among other things (1) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel in the United States stating that (a) TransAlta has received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or (b) since the date of execution of the Indenture, there has been a change in the applicable United States federal income tax law, in either case to the effect that the holders of the outstanding debt securities of such series will not recognize income, gain or loss for United States federal income tax purposes as a result of such Defeasance and will be subject to United States federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such Defeasance had not occurred; (2) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel in Canada or a ruling from the Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA") to the effect that the holders of such outstanding debt securities of such series will not recognize income, gain or loss for Canadian federal, provincial or territorial income or other tax purposes as a result of such Defeasance and will be subject to Canadian federal or provincial income and other tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case had such Defeasance not occurred (and for the purposes of such opinion, such Canadian counsel shall assume that holders of the outstanding debt securities of such series include holders who are not resident in Canada); (3) no Event of Default or event that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, shall constitute an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such deposit; (4) TransAlta is not an "insolvent person" within the meaning of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada); (5) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that such deposit shall not cause the Trustee or the trust so created to be subject to the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended; and (6) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an officer's certificate and opinion of coursel stating that certain conditions precedent are satisfied. TransAlta may exercise its Defeasance option notwithstanding its prior exercise of its Covenant Defeasance option described in the following paragraph if TransAlta meets the conditions described in the preceding sentence at the time TransAlta exercises the Defeasance option (Sections 14.1, 14.2 and 14.4).

The Indenture provides that, at its option, unless and until TransAlta has exercised its Defeasance option described in the preceding paragraph, TransAlta may omit to comply with covenants, including the covenants described above under the heading "Covenants", and such omission shall not be deemed to be an Event of Default under the Indenture and the outstanding debt securities upon irrevocable deposit with the Trustee, in trust, of money and/or government securities which will provide money in an amount sufficient in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent chartered accountants to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and each instalment of interest, if any, on the outstanding debt securities ("Covenant Defeasance"). If TransAlta exercises its Covenant Defeasance option, the obligations under the Indenture other than with respect to such covenants and the Events of Default other than with respect to such covenants shall remain in full force and effect. Such trust may only be established if, among other things, (1) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel in the United States to the effect that the holders of the outstanding debt securities will not recognize income, gain or loss for United States federal income tax purposes as a result of such Covenant Defeasance and will be subject to United States federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such Covenant Defeasance had not occurred; (2) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel in Canada or a ruling from the CRA to the effect that the holders of such outstanding debt securities will not recognize income, gain or loss for Canadian federal, provincial or territorial income or other tax purposes as a result of such Covenant Defeasance and will be subject to Canadian federal or provincial income and other tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case had such Covenant Defeasance not occurred (and for the purposes of such opinion, such Canadian counsel shall assume that holders of the outstanding debt securities include holders who are not resident in Canada); (3) no Event of Default or event that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, shall constitute an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on the date of such deposit; (4) TransAlta is not an "insolvent person" within the meaning of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada); (5) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that

such deposit shall not cause the Trustee or the trust so created to be subject to the United States *Investment Company Act of 1940*, as amended; and (6) TransAlta has delivered to the Trustee an officer's certificate and opinion of counsel stating that certain conditions precedent are satisfied (Sections 14.3 and 14.4).

Consent to Jurisdiction and Service

Under the Indenture, TransAlta irrevocably appoints CT Corporation System, 111 Eighth Avenue, 13th Floor, New York, New York 10011, as its authorized agent for service of process in any suit or proceeding arising out of or relating to the debt securities or the Indenture and for actions brought under federal or state securities laws in any federal or state court located in the City of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction (Section 1.13).

Governing Law

The debt securities and the Indenture will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York (Section 1.11).

PRIOR SALES

We issued the following Securities during the 12 month period prior to the date of this Prospectus:

1.

on January 1, 2014, an aggregate of 2,122,125 Common Shares at a price of \$13.15 per Common Share pursuant to our dividend reinvestment and share purchase plan;

2.

on April 1, 2014, an aggregate of 1,473,813 Common Shares at a price of \$12.37 per Common Share pursuant to our dividend reinvestment and share purchase plan;

3.

on June 3, 2014, we issued US\$400,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 1.900% senior notes maturing on June 3, 2017, at an issue price of 99.887% of the principal amount of the notes;

4.

on July 1, 2014, an aggregate of 1,559,634 Common Shares at a price of \$12.46 per Common Share pursuant to our dividend reinvestment and share purchase plan;

5.

on August 15, 2014, an aggregate of 6,600,000 Series G Shares for aggregate consideration of approximately \$165 million; and

6.

on October 1, 2014, an aggregate of 1,673,753 Common Shares at a price of \$11.58 per Common Share pursuant to our dividend reinvestment and share purchase plan.

For additional information on previously issued Securities, see our consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 and our unaudited consolidated financial statements as at and for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2014, all of which have been incorporated by reference herein.

We have not issued any Warrants or Subscription Receipts during the 12-month period prior to the date of this Prospectus.

MARKET FOR COMMON SHARES

Our Common Shares, Series A Shares, Series C Shares, Series E Shares and our Series G Shares are listed and traded on the TSX under the symbol "TA", "TA.PR.D", "TA.PR.F", "TA.PR.H" and "TA.PR.J", respectively. In addition, our Common Shares are listed and traded on the NYSE under the symbol "TAC". The following tables set forth certain trading information for our Common Shares during the periods indicated as reported by the TSX and on the NYSE and for our Series A Shares, Series C Shares, Series E Shares and Series G Shares on the TSX. For additional trading information relating to our Common Shares, Series A Shares, Series C Shares and Series E Shares, see "*Market for Securities*" in our Annual Information Form.

| | | TSX | |
|-----------------|-----------------|----------------|------------|
| n · 1 | Common Share | Common Share | X7 1 |
| Period | Price (\$) High | Price (\$) Low | Volume |
| 2013 | | | |
| December | 14.18 | 13.30 | 12,976,377 |
| 2014 | | | |
| January | 14.66 | 13.41 | 14,621,490 |
| February | 14.97 | 12.43 | 30,265,151 |
| March | 13.12 | 12.51 | 18,036,710 |
| April | 13.57 | 12.60 | 16,589,651 |
| May | 13.55 | 12.90 | 14,648,189 |
| June | 13.09 | 12.63 | 10,949,642 |
| July | 13.21 | 12.32 | 10,573,315 |
| August | 12.94 | 12.24 | 8,545,483 |
| September | 12.54 | 11.45 | 16,923,510 |
| October | 11.88 | 10.54 | 17,870,362 |
| November | 11.68 | 10.40 | 19,280,760 |
| December (1-16) | 11.34 | 9.63 | 13,355,270 |

| | Common Share | NYSE Common Share | |
|-----------------|-------------------|----------------------|-----------|
| Period | Price (US\$) High | Price (US\$) Low | Volume |
| 2013 | | | |
| December | 13.38 | 12.43 | 2,292,741 |
| 2014 | | | |
| January | 13.16 | 12.61 | 2,002,201 |
| February | 13.67 | 11.20 | 3,269,624 |
| March | 11.91 | 11.21 | 2,727,098 |
| April | 12.36 | 11.47 | 3,248,889 |
| May | 12.41 | 11.85 | 2,160,542 |
| June | 12.27 | 11.55 | 1,899,529 |
| July | 12.38 | 11.31 | 1,683,309 |
| August | 11.80 | 11.18 | 2,202,236 |
| September | 11.50 | 10.32 | 3,414,594 |
| October | 10.64 | 9.33 | 3,778,695 |
| November | 10.33 | 9.11 | 4,925,871 |
| December (1-16) | 9.98 | 8.29 | 3,166,262 |
| | | | 27 |

| | | TSX | |
|-----------------|-----------------|-----------------|---------|
| | Series A Shares | Series A Shares | |
| Period | Price (\$) High | Price (\$) Low | Volume |
| 2013 | | | |
| December | 17.14 | 15.85 | 498,605 |
| 2014 | | | |
| January | 17.92 | 16.75 | 351,742 |
| February | 17.30 | 16.42 | 234,210 |
| March | 16.87 | 16.25 | 306,388 |
| April | 18.62 | 16.74 | 432,693 |
| May | 19.92 | 18.68 | 385,453 |
| June | 19.24 | 18.65 | 168,042 |
| July | 19.25 | 18.77 | 229,648 |
| August | 19.00 | 18.38 | 159,954 |
| September | 18.70 | 16.79 | 209,136 |
| October | 17.19 | 15.87 | 507,516 |
| November | 15.90 | 15.40 | 451,063 |
| December (1-16) | 15.55 | 14.26 | 584,422 |

| Period | Series C Shares Price (\$) High | TSX Series C Shares Price (\$) Low | Volume |
|-----------------|------------------------------------|--|---------|
| 2013 | The (\$) Ingi | The (\$) Low | volume |
| December | 19.07 | 18.05 | 719,193 |
| 2014 | | | |
| January | 20.56 | 19.00 | 385,319 |
| February | 20.50 | 19.80 | 212,813 |
| March | 20.29 | 19.72 | 219,370 |
| April | 21.65 | 19.97 | 212,068 |
| May | 22.40 | 21.49 | 420,108 |
| June | 22.14 | 21.20 | 376,039 |
| July | 22.40 | 22.00 | 218,159 |
| August | 22.33 | 21.40 | 187,935 |
| September | 21.68 | 21.15 | 137,610 |
| October | 21.22 | 19.44 | 162,271 |
| November | 19.98 | 18.94 | 276,397 |
| December (1-16) | 19.46 | 17.40 | 256,757 |
| | | | 28 |

| | | TSX | |
|-----------------|------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------|
| Period | Series E Shares Price (\$) High | Series E Shares Price (\$) Low | Volume |
| 2013 | | | |
| December | 22.51 | 21.53 | 338,082 |
| 2014 | | | |
| January | 23.19 | 22.10 | 127,288 |
| February | 22.95 | 22.20 | 147,505 |
| March | 22.73 | 22.32 | 121,986 |
| April | 23.25 | 22.40 | 134,548 |
| May | 24.35 | 22.88 | 251,097 |
| June | 24.12 | 23.64 | 244,358 |
| July | 24.39 | 23.82 | 155,720 |
| August | 24.49 | 23.50 | 123,315 |
| September | 23.84 | 22.85 | 126,887 |
| October | 23.42 | 21.77 | 144,307 |
| November | 22.27 | 21.33 | 168,885 |
| December (1-16) | 21.54 | 19.49 | 248,773 |

| Period | Series G Shares Price (\$) High | TSX Series G Shares Price (\$) Low | Volume |
|-------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|---------|
| 2014 | | | |
| August (15-31) ⁽¹⁾ | 24.84 | 24.60 | 644,122 |
| September | 24.90 | 24.17 | 207,943 |
| October | 24.75 | 21.91 | 201,838 |
| November | 23.23 | 22.05 | 179,033 |
| December (1-16) | 22.34 | 20.20 | 231,318 |

Note:

(1)

The Series G Shares commenced trading on August 15, 2014.

CERTAIN INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The applicable Prospectus Supplement may describe certain Canadian federal income tax consequences to an investor who is a resident of Canada with respect to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of any Securities offered thereunder.

In addition, the applicable Prospectus Supplement will describe certain Canadian federal income tax consequences to an investor who is a non-resident of Canada and who acquires any Securities offered thereunder, including whether the payments of dividends on Common Shares or First Preferred Shares or payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on debt securities will be subject to Canadian non-resident withholding tax.

The applicable Prospectus Supplement will also describe certain United States federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of any Securities offered thereunder by an initial investor who is a United States person (within the meaning of the United States Internal Revenue Code), including, to the extent applicable, any such consequences relating to debt securities payable in a currency other than the U.S. dollar, issued at an original issue discount for U.S. federal income tax purposes or containing early redemption provisions or other special items.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the Securities to or through underwriters or dealers and also may sell the Securities directly to purchasers pursuant to applicable statutory exemptions or through agents.

The distribution of the Securities of any series may be effected from time to time in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices or at non-fixed prices. If offered on a non-fixed price basis the Securities may be offered at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to such prevailing market prices or at prices to be negotiated with purchasers, in which case the compensation payable to an underwriter, dealer or agent in connection with any such sale will be the amount, if any, by which the aggregate price paid for the Securities by the purchasers exceeds the gross proceeds paid by the underwriter, dealer or agent to us and the price at which the Securities will be offered and sold may vary as between purchasers during the distribution period.

In connection with the sale of the Securities, underwriters may receive compensation from TransAlta or from purchasers of the Securities for whom they may act as agents in the form of concessions or commissions. Underwriters, dealers and agents that participate in the distribution of the Securities may be deemed to be underwriters and any commissions received by them from TransAlta and any profit on the resale of the Securities by them may be deemed to be underwriting commissions.

The Prospectus Supplement relating to each series of the Securities will also set forth the terms of the offering of the Securities, including to the extent applicable, the initial offering price, the proceeds to the Corporation, the underwriting concessions or commissions, and any other discounts or concessions to be allowed or re-allowed to dealers. Underwriters with respect to each series sold to or through underwriters will be named in the Prospectus Supplement relating to such series.

In connection with any offering of Securities, the underwriters may over allot or effect transactions which stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the Securities at a level above that which otherwise might prevail on the open market. Such transactions may be commenced, interrupted or discontinued at any time.

Under agreements which may be entered into by TransAlta, underwriters, dealers and agents who participate in the distribution of the Securities may be entitled to indemnification by the Corporation against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada or under the U.S. Securities Act.

Each series of the Securities (other than Common Shares) will be a new issue of securities with no established trading market. Unless otherwise specified in a Prospectus Supplement relating to a series of Securities, the Securities (other than Common Shares) will not be listed on any securities exchange. Certain broker dealers may make a market in the Securities, but will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. No assurance can be given that any broker dealer will make a market in the Securities of any series or as to the liquidity of the trading market, if any, for the Securities of any series.

RISK FACTORS

Prospective purchasers of the Securities should consider carefully the risk factors and the other information contained and incorporated by reference in this Prospectus and the applicable Prospectus Supplement before purchasing the Securities offered hereby. Information regarding the risks affecting TransAlta and its business is provided in the documents incorporated by reference in this Prospectus, including the Annual MD&A under the heading "*Risk Management*", the Annual Information Form under the heading "*Risk Factors*" and the management's discussion and analysis of financial conditions and results of operations as at and for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2014 under the heading "2014 Outlook". See "Documents Incorporated by Reference".

30

LEGAL MATTERS

Unless otherwise specified in the Prospectus Supplement relating to the Securities, certain legal matters relating to Canadian law in connection with the offering of Securities will be passed upon on behalf of TransAlta by Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP, Calgary, Alberta and McCarthy Tétrault LLP, Calgary, Alberta, as Canadian tax counsel. Certain legal matters relating to United States law in connection with the offering of Securities will be passed upon on behalf of TransAlta by Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP, New York, New York.

EXPERTS

The audited consolidated statements of financial position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated statements of earnings (loss), comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2013 and our report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 have been incorporated by reference herein and in the registration statement in reliance upon the reports of Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, incorporated by reference herein, and given the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

INTEREST OF EXPERTS

In connection with the audit of the Corporation's annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, Ernst & Young LLP confirmed that they are independent within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Alberta.

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

TransAlta's auditors are Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, Calgary, Alberta.

The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares, Series A Shares, cumulative redeemable floating rate first preferred shares, Series B, Series C Shares, cumulative redeemable floating rate first preferred shares, Series D, Series E Shares, cumulative redeemable floating rate first preferred shares, Series F, Series G Shares and cumulative redeemable floating rate first preferred shares, Series H, in Canada is CST Trust Company at its principal transfer offices in Calgary, Alberta, and Toronto, Ontario. The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares in the United States is Computershare Trust Company at its principal office in Jersey City, New Jersey.

DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT

The following documents have been filed with the SEC either separately or as exhibits to the registration statement on Form F-10 of which this Prospectus forms a part: the documents listed herein under "*Documents Incorporated by Reference*" and "*Certain Available Information*"; the consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants; certain powers of attorney; the statement of eligibility of the trustee on Form T-1; and the consent of our Canadian counsel, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP.

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

TransAlta is a corporation existing under the laws of Canada, and the majority of our assets and operations are located, and the majority of our revenues are derived, outside the United States. We have appointed our U.S. subsidiary TransAlta Centralia Generation LLC, Centralia, Washington, as our agent to receive service of process in the United States in connection with any investigations or administrative proceeding conducted by the SEC and any civil suit or action brought against or involving TransAlta in a United States court arising from any offering made under this Prospectus. However, it may not be possible for investors to enforce, outside the United States, judgments against TransAlta obtained in the

United States in any such actions, including actions predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the United States federal and state securities laws. In addition, certain of the directors and officers of TransAlta are residents of Canada or other jurisdictions outside of the United States, and all or a substantial portion of the assets of those directors and officers are or may be located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon those persons, or to enforce against them judgments obtained in United States courts, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of United States federal and state securities laws. TransAlta has been advised by its Canadian counsel, Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP, that a judgment of a United States court predicated solely upon civil liability under U.S. federal securities laws would probably be enforceable in Canada if the United States court in which the judgment was obtained has a basis for jurisdiction in the matter that would be recognized by a Canadian court for the same purpose. TransAlta has also been advised by Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP, however, that there is substantial doubt whether an action could be brought in Canada in the first instance on the basis of liability predicated solely upon U.S. federal securities laws.

32

PART II INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE DELIVERED TO OFFEREES OR PURCHASERS

INDEMNIFICATION

Under s. 124 of the Canada Business Corporation Act ("CBCA"), the Registrant may indemnify a director or officer of the Registrant, a former director or officer of the Registrant or another individual who acts or acted at the Registrant's request as a director or officer, or an individual acting in a similar capacity, of another entity, against all costs, charges, and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment, reasonably incurred by the individual in respect of any civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other proceeding in which the individual is involved because of that association with the Registrant or other entity. In addition, the Registrant may advance moneys to a director, officer or other individual for the costs, charges and expenses of a proceeding referred to above. The individual shall repay the moneys if the individual does not fulfill the conditions in (a) and (b) below. The Registrant may not indemnify an individual unless the individual (a) acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Registrant, or, as the case may be, to the best interests of the other entity for which the individual acted as director or officer or in a similar capacity at the Registrant's request; and (b) in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by monetary penalty, the individual had reasonable grounds for believing that the individual's conduct was lawful. The Registrant may with the approval of a court, indemnify an individual referred to above, or advance money's for the cost, charges and expenses of a proceeding, in respect of an action by or on behalf of the Registrant or other entity to procure a judgment in its favor, to which the individual is made a party because of the individual's association with the Registrant or other entity as described above against all costs, charges and expenses reasonably incurred by the individual in connection with such action, if the individual fulfills the conditions set out in (a) and (b) above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an individual is entitled to indemnity from the Registrant in respect of all costs, charges and expenses, reasonably incurred by the individual in the defence of any civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or other proceeding to which the individual is subject because of the individuals association with the Registrant or other entity referred to above, if the individual seeking indemnity was not judged by a court or other competent authority to have committed any fault or omitted to do anything that the individual ought to have done, and if the individual fulfills the conditions set out in (a) and (b) above.

The by-laws of the Registrant provide that the Registrant shall indemnify a director or officer of the Registrant, a former director or officer of the Registrant or a person who acts or acted at the Registrant's request as a director or officer of a body corporate of which the Registrant is or was a shareholder or creditor, and the heirs and legal representatives thereof, to the extent permitted by the CBCA or otherwise by law.

The Registrant maintains a directors and officers' liability policy which provides coverage to the Registrant for all directors' and officers' related claims, losses and cost in any year, subject to policy limits and deductibles.

The Registrant has entered into indemnification agreements with each of its officers and directors pursuant to which they are indemnified to the fullest extent permitted by the CBCA. Pursuant to the terms of these agreements the Registrant maintains errors and omissions insurance for its officers and directors while they remain an officer or director and for a period of 10 years thereafter.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the Registrant has been informed that in the opinion of the Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

II-1

EXHIBITS

| Exhibit 4.1 | Consolidated Audited Annual Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, for the years ended December 31, 2013 and |
|--------------|--|
| | 2012, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated |
| | statements of earnings, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period |
| | ended December 31, 2013, together with the related notes thereto and the auditors' reports thereon (incorporated by reference to |
| | exhibit 13.3 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.2 | Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as at and for the year ended |
| | December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.3 | Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 |
| | (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File |
| | No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.4 | Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta |
| | Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.5 | Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and |
| | nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's |
| | Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.6 | Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 |
| | (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File |
| | No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.7 | Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and |
| | CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K |
| | filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 4.8 | Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation, |
| | Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of |
| | TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 |
| | to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| Exhibit 5.1 | Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. |
| Exhibit 5.2* | Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. |
| Exhibit 6.1 | Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). |
| Exhibit 7.1 | Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as |
| | trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 26, |
| | 2002, File No. 001-15214). |
| | |

Exhibit 7.2* Statement of Eligibility of the Trustee on Form T-1.

*

previously filed

II-2

PART III UNDERTAKING AND CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

Item 1. Undertaking

The Registrant undertakes to make available, in person or by telephone, representatives to respond to inquiries made by the Commission staff, and to furnish promptly, when requested to do so by the Commission staff, information relating to the securities registered pursuant to Form F-10 or to transactions in said securities.

Item 2. Consent to Service of Process

Concurrently with the initial filing of this Registration Statement on Form F-10, the Registrant filed with the Commission a written irrevocable consent and power of attorney on Form F-X.

Any change to the name or address of the agent for service of process of the Registrant shall be communicated promptly to the Commission by an amendment to the Form F-X referencing the file number of this Registration Statement.

III-1

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form F-10 and has duly caused this amendment no. 1 to the registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Calgary, Province of Alberta, Canada, on December 17, 2014.

TRANSALTA CORPORATION

(Registrant) By: /s/ MARYSE C. ST.-LAURENT

> Name: Maryse C. St.-Laurent Title: Vice-President, Legal & Corporate Secretary III-2

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this amendment no. 1 to the registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated as of December 17, 2014.

| Signature /s/ DAWN L. FARRELL | Title President, Chief Executive Officer |
|--|---|
| Dawn L. Farrell /s/ DONALD TREMBLAY | and Director (Principal Executive Officer) Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) |
| Donald Tremblay * | Director |
| William D. Anderson * | Director |
| John P. Dielwart * | Director |
| Timothy W. Faithfull * | Director |
| Alan J. Fohrer * | Director |
| Gordon D. Giffin * | Director |
| P. Thomas Jenkins * | Director |
| C. Kent Jespersen | |
| | III-3 |

| * | Signature | Director | Title |
|--------------------------|--|------------|-------|
| Michael M. Kanovsky * | | Director | |
| Karen E. Maidment * | | Director | |
| Yakout Mansour * | | Director | |
| Georgia R. Nelson * | | Director | |
| Martha C. Piper | | | |
| *By: | /s/ DONALD TREMBLAY | | |
| | Name: Donald Tremblay Title: Attorney-in-fact | - III-4 | |

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 6(a) of the Securities Act, the undersigned has signed this amendment no. 1 to the Registration Statement solely in their capacity as the duly Authorized Representative of the Registrant in the United States on December 17, 2014.

TRANSALTA CENTRALIA GENERATION LLC

By: /s/ LORI SCHMITT

Name: Lori Schmitt Title: Secretary

III-5

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

| statements of earnings, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year periended December 31, 2013, together with the related notes thereto and the auditors' reports thereon (incorporated by reference exhibit 13.3 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.2 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.3 Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and | Exhibit 4.1 | Consolidated Audited Annual Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, for the years ended December 31, 2013 and |
|--|--------------|---|
| ended December 31, 2013, together with the related notes thereto and the auditors' reports thereon (incorporated by reference exhibit 13.3 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.2 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.3 Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on Groparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysia sa tand for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta Corporatio ins Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Expression Sorter 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of No | | 2012, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated |
| exhibit 13.3 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.2 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.3 Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Norton | | statements of earnings, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period |
| Exhibit 4.2 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.3 Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Noto Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. | | |
| December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.3 Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporatio Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 5.1 | | exhibit 13.3 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.3 Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Norton | Exhibit 4.2 | |
| (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of First & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta C | | |
| No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlt | Exhibit 4.3 | Annual Information Form of TransAlta Corporation, dated February 20, 2014, for the year ended December 31, 2013 |
| Exhibit 4.4 Management proxy/information circular dated March 10, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 40-F filed on February 20, 2014, File |
| Corporation's Form 6-K filed on March 10, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.5 Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on Pebruary 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | No. 001-15214). |
| nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | Exhibit 4.4 | |
| Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | Exhibit 4.5 | Consolidated Comparative Interim Unaudited Financial Statements of TransAlta Corporation, as at and for the three- and |
| Exhibit 4.6 Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.1 to TransAlta Corporation's |
| (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File No. 001-15214). |
| No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | Exhibit 4.6 | Management's Discussion and Analysis as at and for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2014 |
| Exhibit 4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan Agreement amended and restated as of April 23, 2013 between TransAlta Corporation and CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | (incorporated by reference to exhibit 13.2 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on October 30, 2014, File |
| CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | |
| filed on April 26, 2013, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | Exhibit 4.7 | |
| Exhibit 4.8 Material Change Report dated February 26, 2014 relating to the sale by TransAlta of its 50 percent interest in CE Generation Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | CIBC Mellon Trust Company as rights agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K |
| Blackrock development and Wailuku to its partner MidAmerican Renewables for USD\$193.5 million and the resizing of TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | • |
| TransAlta's dividend to an annualized amount of \$0.72 per Common Share (incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | Exhibit 4.8 | |
| to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on February 26, 2014, File No. 001-15214). Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | |
| Exhibit 5.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | |
| Exhibit 5.2* Consent of Norton Rose Fulbright Canada LLP. Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | |
| Exhibit 6.1 Power of Attorney (included on Page III-3 of the initial Registration Statement). Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | |
| Exhibit 7.1 Indenture between TransAlta Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York) trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | - |
| trustee, dated as of June 25, 2002 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 to TransAlta Corporation's Form 6-K filed on June 2002, File No. 001-15214). | | |
| 2002, File No. 001-15214). | Exhibit 7.1 | |
| | | |
| Exhibit 1.2^{+} Statement of Eligibility of the Trustee on Form 1-1. | E 11: 7 0* | |
| | Exhibit 7.2* | Statement of Eligibility of the Trustee on Form 1-1. |

previously filed

QuickLinks

PART I INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE DELIVERED TO OFFEREES OR PURCHASERS SHORT FORM BASE SHELF PROSPECTUS TABLE OF CONTENTS ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE CERTAIN AVAILABLE INFORMATION SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS TRANSALTA CORPORATION **USE OF PROCEEDS** EARNINGS COVERAGE RATIOS DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS DESCRIPTION OF SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPTS DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES PRIOR SALES MARKET FOR COMMON SHARES CERTAIN INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION **RISK FACTORS** LEGAL MATTERS EXPERTS INTEREST OF EXPERTS AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES PART II INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE DELIVERED TO OFFEREES OR PURCHASERS **INDEMNIFICATION EXHIBITS** PART III UNDERTAKING AND CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

Item 1. Undertaking Item 2. Consent to Service of Process SIGNATURES AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE INDEX TO EXHIBITS